
Request for Proposals
Strategic Planning Consultant

Proposals are due by July 2, 2021 at 5:00 p.m. ET
via email to Andrew Brown at adbrown@outlook.com.

Questions about the proposal can also be directed to adbrown@outlook.com.

RFP SUMMARY
Scope of Work
Asian American LEAD (AALEAD) is seeking a consultant to provide expertise, facilitation and
support for a strategic planning process that will involve an environmental scan, stakeholder
input and engagement activities, organizational visioning work (e.g., mission, vision, and values
clarification), and the development of a strategic plan outlining the goals, strategies and major
activities AALEAD should advance in service of our mission, vision and values. AALEAD has
budgeted $25,000 for this strategic planning initiative. Submissions should include the proposed
process, deliverables, timeline, and fees for carrying out this work.

Proposal Submission and Selection Timeline
● June 8: RFP issued
● July 2: Proposals due
● July 9*: Notification of selection or non-selection as a finalist
● Week of July 12*: Finalist interviews
● Week of July 19*: Confirmation of selected consultant

*These dates may shift based on the volume and quality of proposals received.

Strategic Planning Timeline
● August 2021: Kick off strategic planning process
● August - December 2021: Strategic planning activities (e.g., environmental scan,

stakeholder input and engagement, organizational visioning, and strategic plan
development)

● January 2022: Presentation and approval of strategic plan at annual Board retreat



Expected Role of the Strategic Planning Consultant
We seek a firm or individual with proven experience and knowledge in strategic planning with a
racial equity lens and ideally cultural competency around Asian and Pacific Islander
communities. The firm’s expertise should also include data collection efforts as an objective third
party. We imagine data collection could include engagement of AALEAD youth, families, staff,
board, funders (individual, institutional and government), nonprofit peers, volunteers, and other
strategic partners through surveys, focus groups, Census data, regional demographic
data/maps and/or interviews. We seek meaningful and equitable opportunities possible for all
interested stakeholders to provide input and share insights. The consultant will also be asked to
also consider our existing data, such as program feedback from youth and families.

Role of the AALEAD Board and Staff
AALEAD has formed a Strategic Planning Committee, composed of board members and our
executive director, to support this work. That said, it will be critical for the strategic planning
process to meaningfully engage our entire board and staff to build shared ownership of our new
strategic plan.

Confidentiality
This RFP  contains confidential information that is the property of AALEAD, which is provided for
the sole purpose of permitting the recipient to respond to the RFP. The recipient agrees to
maintain such information in confidence and not to copy nor disclose this information to any
person outside the group directly responsible for responding to its contents. The contents of this
document may not be used for any purpose other than preparation of a response to this RFP.

ABOUT AALEAD

AALEAD was founded in 1998 by Sandy Dang to serve what was then a large Vietnamese
refugee population in Washington, DC. Ms. Dang witnessed the same needs and types of
challenges she had faced as a recent refugee to the United States and sought to create and
grow a community organization that belonged to the community. As the demographics of the
region changed over the years, AALEAD expanded its services to the multi-ethnic Asian and
Pacific Islander community in Washington, DC; Montgomery County, MD; and Fairfax County,
VA. AALEAD has had 5 executive directors over our 20+ year history. In August 2020, Akil
Vohra joined AALEAD as our fifth and current Executive Director.

AALEAD’s Current Strategic Framework
In 2017, AALEAD embarked on a strategic planning process fresh off a leadership change and
entering our 20th year of supporting low-income and underserved Asian Pacific American youth.
We moved to real-time strategic planning in the hopes of better responding to the frequency of
the changing environment and moving AALEAD closer to being prepared for what was next.
The plan sought to advance AALEAD’s evolution with a focus on strengthening the organization



and its programs so that it would be prepared to support low-income youth for many years to
come.

Appendix A includes AALEAD’s full 2018-2020 Strategic Plan, which is also summarized below.

Vision Asian American LEAD (AALEAD) envisions a United States in which low income
and underserved Asian Pacific American youth, and youth of all backgrounds,
are equipped with the tools and opportunities to define themselves and their
own futures.

Mission AALEAD supports low-income and underserved Asian Pacific American youth
with educational empowerment, identity development, and leadership
opportunities through after school, summer, and mentoring programs.

Values 1. Creating a caring environment where youth belong and can
grow/connect with each other and their community.

2. Our aim is to give high quality programs that lead to results-oriented
sustainability.

3. We are committed to the wellness of our staff and providing an
environment and culture where they can thrive.

4. We center youth strengths, youth voice, and youth experiences in all our
work.

Who We
Support

Low-income and underserved Asian Pacific American youth.

Programs 1. DC Elementary School Program - after school & summer
2. DC Middle & High School Program - after school & summer
3. MD Middle School Program - after school & summer
4. MD High School Program - after school & summer
5. VA Middle School Program - after school & summer
6. VA High School Program - after school & summer
7. Youth Mentoring Program
8. Community College Mentoring Program

Goals 1. Increase access to AALEAD’s programs and improve youth outcomes
through program expansion.

2. Demonstrate and effectively communicate needs of and program impact
on low income and underserved APA youth and community.



3. Strengthen AALEAD’s infrastructure and governance to improve
organizational capacity, efficiency, and sustainability.

4. Create plans and strategies for individual donors, foundations, and
corporations for financial sustainability.

Why Strategic Planning Now?
Since our 2017 strategic planning process, AALEAD has been through major staffing transitions,
including an executive transition, as well as several feast and famine funding cycles. At the
same time, a lot has happened in the world, including the COVID pandemic, an intense national
racial reckoning, and a marked rise in anti-Asian racism, and in the DC region, the
demographics of our community continue to shift.

There are several fundamental questions underlying AALEAD’s change strategy that we hope to
resolve through a comprehensive strategic planning process. These questions include the
following:

● What is the impact we hope to achieve through our work?
● Should we consider intentionally expanding our key population beyond low-income AAPI

youth?
● What is the right geographic footprint for doing our work in a meaningful way?
● What is the process for creating, monitoring and, where necessary, revising a strategic

plan
● What should AALEAD’s business model and staffing structure be to best serve AAPI

youth?
● What does the philanthropic funding landscape look like and how does AALEAD fit into

it?

SCOPE OF SERVICES / RFP QUESTIONS

In your proposal, please include responses to the following questions:

1. Facilitation: What experience do you have in facilitating strategic planning processes
that center racial equity? Please provide specific examples of how you have embedded
equity in the overall design of a strategic planning process. Please also describe
participatory stakeholder engagement strategies you have used that effectively center
racial equity.

2. Research:
a. Please describe how you would approach the environmental scanning phase of

this work. What methods would you use to gather new data from AALEAD’s key
stakeholders (e.g., youth, families, staff, board, funders (individual, institutional
and government), nonprofit peers, volunteers, and other strategic partners
through surveys, focus groups and/or interviews)?

b. What existing organizational data would you ask AALEAD to provide to support
your research?



3. Engagement of Board and Staff: How would you advise engaging the full board and all
staff in the process to ensure there is meaningful ownership of the strategic plan beyond
the members of the strategic planning committee?

4. Vision, Mission, Values: This strategic planning process will include a review of
AALEAD’s mission, vision, and values. What is best practice in considering whether to
revisit these areas, and best practice in making such changes?

5. Final Reporting:  What elements would you typically include, and/or would you
recommend including, in a final report to AALEAD at the conclusion of this work? Please
describe the level of detail we might expect.

6. Scope: Are there any aspects of your role in supporting a strategic planning process that
have not been identified in this RFP? If so, please describe.

7. Timeline: Based on the project scope and timeline information shared so far, how would
you describe the timeline for this process? Is it ambitious but realistic? Achievable in
part, but on the whole not feasible? A good start but with opportunity to do more?

8. Cost: AALEAD has budgeted $25,000 for these strategic planning efforts. Describe the
costs associated with each piece of the consultation you are proposing, noting any
applicable fees and recurring costs, and highlighting any line items that may be optional.

9. Geographic, AAPI community, and Youth Development Knowledge/Experience.
Briefly describe your firm’s experience working:

● In the Greater Washington region
● With AAPI and/or other communities of color
● With youth development nonprofits.

10. Team Member Backgrounds and Experience:  Provide key demographic information
(e.g., race, ethnicity, gender identity) and experience of the individual(s) who would be
serving on the team for this engagement with AALEAD, being sure to highlight their
experience with strategic planning and racial equity work. (You may attach resumes.)

11. Awards and Recognitions:  You are invited to share any highlights of your
organization’s success, such as awards and recognitions, which may help to
demonstrate your firm’s level of excellence.

12. Location: Describe your organization’s location(s) and your ability to be on site if
needed in the Washington, DC area.



13. Satisfaction Guarantee. Describe, if any, a satisfaction guarantee provided by your firm
and/or standard contract language referencing a guarantee of services.

14. Contract Sample. Include, if applicable, a sample contract for services similar to those
being requested by AALEAD.

15. References: Include at least three (3) references that your firm has led strategic
planning processes for. Include the organization name, the specific contact’s name,
email address and phone number, and note the project(s) which you led for the
organization.

PROPOSAL SCORING

AALEAD’s Strategic Planning Committee will score submitted proposals on the following criteria:

● Strength and feasibility of the proposed scope of work, timeline, implementation plan,
and budget

● Meaningful engagement of stakeholders throughout the proposed process
● Demonstrated knowledge and experience in strategic planning with a strong racial equity

analysis
● The diversity of the project team
● Breadth and depth of experience and qualifications
● Experience working with organizations similar to AALEAD (e.g., size, budget, geography,

population)


